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COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND 

attorneys, MORGAN & MEYERS, PLC, complain of Defendants for the following reasons: 

1 



( General Allegations) 

1. Plaintiff Rochelle D. Collins ("Plaintiff') is a Wayne County, Michigan resident, 

and a fonner Executive Assistant to the Mayor for the City of Detroit. Plaintiff Oreese Collins, 

Jr. ("Plaintiff Oreese Collins") is a Wayne County, Michigan resident and husband of Rochelle 

D. Collins. 

2. Defendant City of Detroit is a municipal corporation organized and existing under 

the laws of the State of Michigan, and located in Wayne County, Michigan. 

3. Defendant Mayor Dave Bing ("Defendant Bing") is a Wayne County, Michigan 

resident and is Mayor and an agent of the City of Detroit. Defendant Karen Dumas ("Defendant 

Dumas") is a Wayne County, Michigan resident and currently holds the title of Chief 

Communications Officer for Mayor Dave Bing and the City of Detroit and is an agent of the City 

of Detroit. 

4. All the events in controversy occurred in Wayne County, Michigan; and the 

amount in controversy exceeds $25,000.00, exclusive of interest, costs and attorney fees. 

5. Plaintiff Collins has been employed with the City of Detroit for 21 years, serving 

in various capacities including an Administrative Assistant, Senior Development Specialist, and 

Associate Development Specialist. Plaintiff Collins holds a Bachelor's of Science Degree from 

the University of Michigan in Business Administration, and a Master's Degree in 

Management/Marketing from University of Phoenix. 

6. In June 2009 Plaintiff accepted a position as Executive Assistant to the Mayor II, 

and at times pertinent hereto held an external title of Governmental Affairs Liaison with a direct 

reporting relationship to the Group Executive for Corporate and Civic Affairs for the City of 

2 



Detroit (hereinafter "Group Executive"). During her tenure In the Mayor's Office, Plaintiff 

achieved numerous important accomplishments, including: 

a. Developed the request for proposal, scope of service and rating criteria for 

the City's federal lobbyist contract; 

b. Successfully developed the job description for the Education Advocate for 

the City of Detroit, which resulted in the award of a $125,000 grant from 

the Skillman Foundation for the position; 

c. Developed and maintained ongoing relationships with Federal government 

agencIes; 

d. Successfully developed and implemented in conjunction with the United 

States Department of Defense the first "Match Making" event in the City of 

Detroit; 

e. Successfully coordinated the only visit of the First Lady of the United 

States to the City of Detroit, which required Plaintiff to interface with the 

Department of Justice, Office of the First Lady, Office of the President, 

Secret Service, FBI, State Police and Wayne State University; 

f. Developed policy and procedures for the submission of federally funded 

grants on behalf of the City; 

g. Represented the City of Detroit on the repositioning of the Lead Program 

with the Center for Disease Control, allowing the City of Detroit to 

maintain its current funding; 

h. Managed and assisted with the implementation of the Mayor's Residence 

Board; 
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1. With the full knowledge and authorization of Defendant Mayor Bing, 

Plaintiff participated in the strategy developed by the Governor and his 

Executive Staff, the Emergency Financial Manager of Detroit Public 

Schools (DPS), Defendant Mayor Bing, and the Group Executive to 

transfer control of DPS to the Mayor of Detroit; including, but not limited 

to, performing the following duties: 

(i) Worked with a consultant paid for by the Bing Institute to conduct 

polling of Detroit citizens whether they support Mayoral control 

over DPS, the results of which showed overwhelming support for 

the idea; 

(ii) Scheduled clandestine meetings between Defendant Mayor Bing, 

the Group Executive, the Governor and/or his Executive Staff, 

and/or the DPS' Emergency Financial Manager to develop and 

execute the strategy; 

(iii) Worked with stakeholders to ensure that Public Act 4 contained all 

necessary provisions to accomplish the goals of the strategy, which 

included Defendant Mayor Bing being named Emergency Manager 

for the City of Detroit and DPS, and dissolving both the Detroit 

City Council and the DPS School Board; 

(iv) Participated in meetings with the Group Executive, the U.S. 

Department of Education, the Deputy Superintendent for DPS, 

and/or the Chief Communications Officer for DPS to develop and 

execute the strategy; and 
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(v) Handled every detail of the Group Executive's transition to 

become the new Emergency Manager for DPS, and worked closely 

with the Governor's Administration and the existing Emergency 

Manager to finalize details of the transition and to ensure all 

paperwork was in order. 

7. Since all the details of the strategy were complete, during the .week of 

February 14, 2011, Defendant Mayor Bing announced to his Executive Staff that the Group 

Executive would be leaving the Bing Administration to become the new Emergency Financial 

Manager for DPS. Defendant Dumas was present in this meeting; and upon information and 

belief, this is when she first learned of the strategy. 

8. On or about February 28, 2011, Defendant Dumas told Defendant Mayor Bing 

that it "would kill him politically" if the Group Executive became the Emergency Manager for 

DPS, despite the fact that: 

a. Polling had shown overwhelming support for the idea of Mayoral control 

over DPS; 

b. 30,000 plus petition signatures were delivered to City Hall in support of 

Mayoral control over DPS; 

c. This strategy would have been ID the best interests of the children of 

Detroit and the City as a whole; 

d. This strategy was advocated by both the federal and state Administrations, 

and would have meant an infusion to DPS of a billion dollars of aid and 

nationally renowned expertise to mirror the new DPS after the highly 

successful Chicago Public School System. 

5 



9. Defendant Dumas' advice to Defendant Mayor Bing caused a rift between 

Defendant Mayor Bing and the Group Executive. Plaintiff spoke privately with Defendant 

Mayor Bing and expressed her concern that abandoning this strategy would cause a breakdown 

in the personal and professional relationship he had the Group Executive. Defendant Mayor 

Bing stated he had spoken at great length with the Group Executive and was following the advice 

of Defendant Dumas that the strategy not be executed. 

10. On or about March 4, 2011, Defendant Mayor Bing met with the Group Executive 

in the morning on two occasions having what appeared to be heated discussions. That afternoon, 

the Group Executive was "relieved of his duties." Statements were made to the media and others 

that Defendant Mayor Bing had to tenninate the Group Executive because the Group Executive 

sought to be named the new Emergency Manager for DPS without Defendant Mayor Bing's 

knowledge or support, in order to deflect from Defendant Mayor Bing's actual knowledge of and 

participation in the strategy. 

11. Throughout Plaintiffs tenure as Government Affairs Liaison, Defendant Dumas 

attempted to exert control over governmental affairs and public policy matters, areas of 

discipline for which Defendant Dumas was not qualified, experienced nor knowledgeable. 

Plaintiff developed solid, professional relationships with the City's state lobbying finn, the City'S 

federal lobbying finn, and various members of President Obama's Administration, and Plaintiff 

was respected for her knowledge of the issues, her professionalism, and her demeanor. Plaintiff 

cultivated those relationships for the benefit of the City of Detroit and Defendant Mayor Bing. 

12. After Defendant Mayor Bing relieved the Group Executive of his duties, and 

because Plaintiff had intimate knowledge of the true facts and circumstances regarding the 

reason for the Group Executive's departure, as opposed to statements Defendants made to the 
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media and others about his departure, they assigned Plaintiffs direct reporting relationship to 

Defendant Dumas. Defendant Dumas proceeded to "micro-manage" Plaintiffs work 

responsibilities to a level that was harassing. Defendant Dumas also ordered Plaintiff to move to 

a smaller office under the pretense that Defendant Dumas needed Plaintiff to be closer to her. 

Requiring Plaintiff to directly report to Defendant Dumas and moving Plaintiff to an office closer 

to her was intended to intimidate Plaintiff and to place her under an unnecessarily heightened 

level of scrutiny, thereby causing or contributing to the creation of a hostile work environment in 

violation of Executive Order 201 O-l. 

13. Defendant Dumas' attempts to intercede on governmental affairs and public 

policy matters were detrimental to the City of Detroit at the local, state and federal level; and 

Plaintiff believed it was in the best interest of the City of Detroit and Defendant Mayor Bing to 

question Defendant Dumas' directives and advice on such matters. Defendant Dumas created a 

demeaning, hostile work environment because Plaintiff questioned Defendant Dumas' judgment 

and because Plaintiff showed initiative in submitting recommendations to Defendant Mayor 

Bing. Defendant Dumas did not welcome or appreciate Plaintiffs experience and knowledge 

regarding governmental affairs and public policy matters even though Plaintiff had performed 

admirably under the direction of the former Group Executive for Corporate and Civic Affairs. 

14. On or about March 26, 2011, an anonymous letter was delivered to Defendant 

Mayor Bing, and also delivered to members of the Detroit City Council, setting out numerous, 

serious concerns about Defendant Dumas' behavior, both ethically and legally, critical of her 

professionalism and her perceived vendettas toward other members of the Bing Administration, 

questioned whether there is an intimate relationship between Defendant Mayor Bing and 

Defendant Dumas, questioned whether Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas were using 
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public funds for private use, cited Defendant Dumas' alleged violation of the Freedom of 

Information Act and retaliation against an employee who complied with a FOIA request, and 

stated Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas have created a hostile work environment for 

employees. The letter questioned Defendant Mayor Bing's judgment in retaining Defendant 

Dumas on his staff and challenged him to do what would be in the best interest of the citizens of 

Detroit. The letter is attached and hereby incorporated as Exhibit I. 

15. Upon information and belief, Defendant Mayor Bing turned the March 26, 2011, 

anonymous letter over to the City's Corporation Counsel. Upon information and belief, 

Defendant Dumas told Defendant Mayor Bing that Plaintiff authored the March 26, 2011, letter. 

Plaintiff did not. Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas' belief that Plaintiff authored the 

anonymous letter further fueled the hostile work environment against her. 

16. The difficulties of Defendant Dumas' hostile attitude toward Plaintiff continued to 

escalate to the point where Defendant Mayor Bing requested a meeting between himself and 

Plaintiff on or about March 31, 2011. 

17. At an 11:00 a.m. meeting on or about March 31, 2011, Plaintiff advised 

Defendant Mayor Bing that it was difficult working with Defendant Dumas and her micro­

managing of Plaintiffs job responsibilities because Defendant Dumas had limited knowledge of 

the political process with the state and federal government. Defendant Mayor Bing 

acknowledged that although it appeared Defendant Dumas was attempting to micro-manage 

Plaintiff, he believed Defendant Dumas was simply "feeling uneasy and insecure" about 

government affairs because she was unfamiliar with the political process. 

18. At the 11 :00 a.m. meeting on or about March 31, 2011, Plaintiff also informed 

Defendant Mayor Bing that Defendant Dumas had made defamatory remarks about Plaintiff that 
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matters were "fucked up" and that Plaintiff was incompetent. Further, Defendant Dumas 

instructed Plaintiff to eat lunch with her every day to provide details of every conversation 

Plaintiff had with any person regarding City business whether by telephone or in person. 

Defendant Mayor Bing stated that Defendant Dumas should let Plaintiff "do her damn job" and 

concentrate on her own responsibilities; and told Plaintiff to so state this to Defendant Dumas. 

] 9. At the] ] :00 a.m. meeting on or about March 3 L 20] ], Defendant Mayor Bing 

asked that Plaintiff meet with him, the Chief of Staff and Defendant Dumas later that day to 

discuss the situation further. Plaintiff agreed and stated she would make every effort to work 

with Defendant Dumas. Defendant Mayor Bing indicated his staff was "thin" and he thought 

Plaintiff brought value to the team and he did not want to lose Plaintiff as a member of his 

Administration; and that everyone was overworked and stretched. A meeting was set for 3:00 

p.m. 

20. At the 3:00 p.m. meeting on or about March 3], 20] ], Defendant Mayor Bing 

stated it had been brought to his attention there was tension between Plaintiff and Defendant 

Dumas and that he did not want to lose either employee and wanted to work out the situation as 

quickly as possible. At that time, Defendant Mayor Bing informed Plaintiff that Defendant 

Dumas had been complaining Plaintiff was not answering emails, Plaintiff refused to speak to 

Defendant Dumas, and that Plaintiff did not want to report to the Communications Manager. 

Plaintiff responded that these statements were not true and that Defendant Dumas had told 

Plaintiff that Defendant Mayor Bing did not think the Communications Manager was supervisory 

material, so Plaintiffs assignment as a direct report to Defendant Dumas was intended to put 

Plaintiff as second in command. 
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21. At the 3 :00 p.m. meeting on or about March 31, 20 II, Plaintiff again told the 

Defendant Mayor Bing that Defendant Dumas was not familiar with the responsibilities of 

Government Affairs Liaison, and that the proper performance of the job duties were not driven 

by communication; rather, communication is driven by good policy decisions related to 

governmental affairs. Defendant Dumas became visibly upset and repeated her false statement 

that Plaintiff was not responding to emails as instructed. Plaintiff then advised Defendant Mayor 

Bing that her emails contained a feature that notified Plaintiff when Defendant Dumas opened 

the email and that all correspondence Plaintiff sent to Defendant Dumas had been received and 

opened. Knowing full well that she had been caught lying to Defendant Mayor Bing, Defendant 

Dumas became further enraged and stated she receives more than 1,000 emails a day and perhaps 

she opened the emails but did not realize they were from Plaintiff. 

22. A t the 3 :00 p.m. meeting on or about March 31, 20 11, Defendant Dumas further 

questioned Plaintiffs capability to perform her job duties. At that time, Defendant Mayor Bing 

stated he felt Plaintiff was more than capable of doing the job and had been performing well 

under the former Group Executive for Corporate and Civic Affairs. Defendant Mayor Bing then 

asked if Defendant Dumas and Plaintiff would be willing to meet separately with the Chief of 

Staff, who was present during the 3 :00 p.m. meeting. Plaintiff agreed. Defendant Dumas 

refused to answer. 

23. At the 3:00 p.m. meeting on or about March 31, 2011, Defendant Dumas also told 

Defendant Mayor Bing that she did not trust Plaintiff and stated the impending trip to 

Washington D.C. the following week would be difficult due to the strain in the relationship. 

Plaintiff indicated that she was a professional, the matter would not interfere with her ability to 
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represent the Administration, and that the controversy would not be something discussed outside 

the office. 

24. Defendant Dumas then raised her voice to Defendant Mayor Bing that she was 

"done" with the meeting because it was "bullshit" and she did not want to talk about it anymore. 

Defendant Dumas then stormed out of the Mayor's office ranting, "This is bullshit!" in the outer 

office, causing a scene witnessed by several employees. Defendant Mayor Bing took no action 

or corrective action regarding Defendant Dumas' behavior. Plaintiff assured Mayor Defendant 

Bing that she would continue to represent the Administration in a professional manner and he did 

not have to worry about the upcoming trip. 

25. When Plaintiff returned to her office after the 3:00 p.m. meeting on or about 

March 31, 2011, Defendant Dumas came into Plaintiffs office, shut the door and demanded to 

speak to Plaintiff. Given Defendant Dumas' previous ranting and unprofessional behavior at the 

earlier meeting, Plaintiff stated she did not want to talk further. Defendant Dumas then 

proceeded to yell at Plaintiff, "How dare you tell the Mayor what I said about [the 

Communications Manager]! I would never tell someone something you told me!" 

26. Plaintiff stated for a third time that she did not want to discuss the issue anymore 

and attempted to leave her office. Defendant Dumas physically stood in front of the door so that 

Plaintiff could not leave. Plaintiff asked Defendant Dumas to leave her office, but Defendant 

Dumas continued to shout at Plaintiff that she did not trust her, and that Plaintiffs comment 

about the Communications Manager would cause Defendant Mayor Bing not to trust Defendant 

Dumas. Defendant Dumas also stated that Plaintiff made Defendant Dumas "look like an idiot" 

in front of Defendant Mayor Bing and "that stupid bitch," referring to the Chief of Staff. 

Plaintiff became visibly emotional and upset and continued to ask Defendant Dumas to leave her 
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office. Defendant Dumas continuously refused to leave and shouted she did not want to resolve 

the matter with the participation of the Chief of Staff because she felt the Chief of Staff was 

"incompetent and stupid." 

27. Mayoral Executive Order No. 2010-1 issued by Defendant Mayor Dave Bing on 

November 15,2010, entitled "Violence in the Workplace" states in pertinent part: 

"Employees have the right to work in an environment that is free from violence. 
As an employer, the City of Detroit wiJ) take all affirmative steps necessary to 
eliminate violence in the City workplace. 

Violence in the workplace includes: 1) written or verbal communications, 
whether direct or indirect, which are of a threatening, intimidating, or 
coercive nature; 2) the use or threat of physical force, including fighting or 
horseplay .... Appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, 
will be taken against employees who are found to have engaged in such 
misconduct. 

The City of Detroit will not tolerate violence in the workplace, whether 
committed by or against City employees. In accordance with this Order: 

1.) The City of Detroit shall continue to adhere to a policy of zero 
tolerance for any form of violence in the workplace; 

2.) The Director of the Human Rights Department shall promulgate and 
oversee the implementation of a Violence in the Workplace Policy_ 
This Policy shall provide for designation of a City of Detroit Violence 
in the Workplace Coordinator within the Human Rights Department, 
appointment of a departmental Violence in the Workplace Liaison in 
each City department and agency, report and investigation procedures 
for incidents of workplace violence, appropriate assistance to victims 
of workplace violence, and training of City of Detroit managers, 
supervisors, and employees on the Violence in the Workplace Policy; 

5) All managers and supervisors shall be responsible for 
implementing and maintaining safe workplace practices, the City of 
Detroit Violence in the Workplace Policy, and communicating the 
Policy to subordinates; 

7) All employees, including managers and supervisors, shall be 
responsible for reporting incidents of violence in the workplace or 
any potentially dangerous situation to their supervisors, the 
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Violence in the Workplace Liaison in each department and agency, the 
Human Rights Department Workplace Violence Unit or, where 
appropriate, to law enforcement authorities; 

9) No person shall be retaliated against for having made a good faith 
report or complaint or for participating in, or aiding an 
investigation of, an incident or threat of violence in the workplace. 

(Exhibit 2) 

28. In the days after Defendant Dumas' physically aggressIve and psychologically 

demeaning behavior in Plaintiff's office, Defendant Dumas continued her hostile behavior 

toward Plaintiff by asking for information/materials that Plaintiff had previously sent, again 

stating she was not receiving them, and instructing staff not to speak to Plaintiff with the threat 

of dismissal if they did so. Defendant Dumas told Plaintiff that she could no longer correspond 

directly with Defendant Mayor Bing, and all correspondence had to come through Defendant 

Dumas or the Communications Manager. When Plaintiff asked Defendant Dumas the reason for 

this change, Defendant Dumas responded, "Because I said so." 

29. On April 3-5, 2011, Defendant Mayor Bing, Defendant Dumas and Plaintiff 

traveled to Washington, D.C. for a series of meetings on important government affairs and public 

policy matters. Plaintiff arranged the meetings for the trip and submitted suggested subjects of 

discussion to Defendant Mayor Bing. Although Defendant Dumas was the Chief 

Communications Officer and was not qualified, experienced or knowledgeable about 

governmental affairs and public policy matters affecting Detroit at the federal level, Defendant 

Dumas indicated that she, not the Mayor, would decide what he would discuss during the 

meetings. Defendant Dumas ordered Plaintiff not to submit anything to Defendant Mayor Bing. 

Defendant Dumas also stated that she and Plaintiff needed "to work this shit out" between them, 

and that perhaps Plaintiff would have to report to someone else. 
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30. During the Washington D.C. trip Defendant Mayor Bing asked Plaintiff about the 

relationship between Defendant Dumas and herself, at which time Plaintiff informed Defendant 

Mayor Bing that they were attempting to work things out. Defendant Mayor Bing stated he was 

glad to hear that because he did not want to lose Plaintiff or Defendant Dumas as an employee. 

31. There was no legitimate business reason for Defendant Dumas to travel with 

Defendant Mayor Bing on the trip to Washington D.C. While Defendant Mayor Bing, 

Defendant Dumas, Plaintiff, and a member of the Mayor's Executive Protection Unit (E.P.U.) 

traveled in the Washington D.C. area, Defendant Dumas requested the driver of their vehicle to 

stop at T. J. Maxx so she could go shopping. Defendant Dumas made Defendant Mayor Bing, 

Plaintiff and the E.P.U. officer wait in the vehicle for her while she went shopping. Defendant 

Mayor Bing did not object to or correct Defendant Dumas' behavior. Later that afternoon, after 

the group attended a few meetings, Defendant Dumas requested the driver to take her to the 

Burberry store. Plaintiff stated that Defendant Mayor Bing had a meeting with one of 

Michigan's United States Senators and they would be late for the meeting if they stopped for 

another shopping trip. Defendant Dumas stated that Defendant Mayor Bing did not need to meet 

with the United States Senator, told Plaintiff to cancel the meeting, and had the driver take the 

group to the Burberry store where, again, the group waited in the vehicle while Defendant 

Dumas went shopping. Defendant Mayor Bing did not object to or correct Defendant Dumas' 

behavior. Defendant Dumas' behavior was both unprofessional and a misuse of City of Detroit 

taxpayer funds. This incident further contributed to the hostile work environment for Plaintiff in 

that it was becoming clear to Plaintiff that Defendant Dumas had the full support of Defendant 

Mayor Bing no matter how poorly Defendant Dumas behaved. 
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32. Upon return from the Washington, D.C. trip Defendant Dumas continued to 

harass Plaintiff by asking her for the same information previously requested and stating she was 

not receiving Plaintiffs emails. Plaintiff advised Defendant Dumas that not only was she 

sending Defendant Dumas all information requested, that she was also copying the 

Communications Manager and placed hard copies of emails directly in Defendant Dumas' office. 

Defendant Dumas still claimed she was not receiving the documents. 

33. Plaintiff met with the Chief of Staff on April 6, 2011, and reported, pursuant to 

Executive Order 2010-1 regarding Violence in the Workplace, Defendant Dumas' threatening, 

intimidating and coercive verbal communications, and Defendant Dumas' physical threat in 

blocking Plaintiffs doorway so she could not leave her office, all of which occurred on or about 

March 31, 2011; as well as reported Defendant Dumas' continued false allegations that Plaintiff 

was not responding to e-mails or communicating with Defendant Dumas. Plaintiff s action 

constituted protected activity under the Whistleblowers' Protection Act, MCL 15.361 e/ seq in 

that she reported a violation of a law or regulation or rule promulgated pursuant to a political 

subdivision of the State of Michigan. 

34. The Chief of Staff was very concerned about the incident in Plaintiffs office, the 

aggressive nature of Defendant Dumas' actions, Plaintiffs emotional distress from the incident, 

and Defendant Dumas' refusal to leave. The Chief of Staff stated she would fully investigate the 

matter and that Plaintiff should keep the Chief of Staff informed of any continued or escalated 

hostile behavior by Defendant Dumas. 

35. On April 8, 2011, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-1, the Chief of Staff held a 

mandatory staff meeting to discuss the Executive Order and workplace violence. Defendant 

Mayor Bing attended the meeting and stated workplace violence and/or intimidation against 
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employees would not be tolerated. He informed his staff that employees should discuss any 

issues/concerns with the Chief of Staff. During this meeting, the Chief of Staff provided details 

on what is considered workplace violence. 

36. During this meeting the Chief of Staff advised employees that if someone is 

yelling at the employee and he or she is uncomfortable, the employee should inform the 

offending employee he or she is uncomfortable and state a desire not to discuss the matter any 

further. The Chief of Staff also informed the employees if the offending employee is persistent 

the employee should again inform the offending employee that he or she does not feel 

comfortable and/or he or she feels threatened and walk away. 

37. During the meeting Defendant Dumas asked the Chief of Staff if she witnessed 

work place violence or harassment would she have to report it or testify against the 

Administration if she is an appointee. The Chief of Staff, who is a licensed attorney responded, 

"Yes, as an officer of the court, I would have to testify and/or investigate if it is brought to my 

attention." Defendant Dumas, then asked, "So if you witness something as an appointee you will 

have to report it?" and, again, the Chief of Staff stated, "Yes." Defendant Dumas became 

enraged and stormed out of the meeting before the Chief of Staff had finished her presentation 

for the employees. Defendant Mayor Bing did not react to or correct Defendant Dumas' 

behavior in front of the rest of the staff, indicating that her behavior was to be tolerated. 

38. After the April 8,2011, meeting Defendant Dumas confronted Plaintiff and stated 

in a hostile tone, "It's because of you we had this meeting," and marched away. 

39. During the week of April 11, 2011, Defendant Dumas instructed Plaintiff to 

negotiate a contract between the City'S current state lobbying firm and a second lobbying firm, 

whose general partner was a former State Legislator with whom Defendant Dumas had a 
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political relationship and to whom she wanted to steer business. PlaintitT informed Defendant 

Dumas that this was improper as Plaintiff would be negotiating a third party contract on behalf of 
J 

a vendor, and further, there were no City funds available to pay for a second state lobbying firm. 

Defendant Dumas told Plaintiff that she (Defendant Dumas) was instructing the City'S current 

lobbying finn to hire the second firm to "supervise" the City'S current lobbying firm. Plaintiff 

informed Defendant Dumas that it would be improper for the City'S lobbying firm to pay another 

firm to "supervise" their actions. 

40. Defendant Dumas ignored Plaintiff's concerns and instructed Plaintiff to review 

the second lobbying firm's proposal and make recommendations to strengthen their proposal. 

Plaintiff informed Defendant Dumas that the second lobbying firm's proposal included a 

statement that they would assist the Mayor with his re-election campaign. Plaintiff informed 

Defendant Dumas this was illegal and the City would be prohibited from paying funds for this 

purpose. Defendant Dumas instructed Plaintiff to inform the second lobbying firm to remove 

this item from their proposal although she (Defendant Dumas) would still require the second 

lobbying firm to perform the illegal act of assisting with the Mayor's re-election campaign using 

Cityfunds. 

41. Plaintiff was extremely uncomfortable with these illegal directives from 

Defendant Dumas and requested that the two lobbying firms work out the tenns of their third 

party contract directly. Defendant Dumas instructed Plaintiff not to involve the City'S lobbying 

firm until there was a deal with the second lobbying firm. Defendant Dumas made it clear that 

she would be telling the City'S lobbying firm that it had to enter into a contract with the second 

lobbying finn. Due to her concerns over the legality of the contract, Plaintiff purposely did not 

follow through with completion of the tasks assigned to her. 
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42. After PlaintifT engaged in protected activity under the Whistleblowers' Protection 

Act, Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas consistently placed Plaintiff in situations that 

would essentially undermine Plaintiffs credibility and integrity, such as: 

a. On April 26, 2011, Defendant Mayor Bing met with a principal from the 

City's lobbying firm and advised him that Plaintiff and Defendant Dumas did not get 

along and were having difficulties working together. Defendant Mayor Bing stated that 

although Defendant Dumas did not understand governmental affairs, staff changes were 

going to be made and Plaintiff would have some other role in the Administration. 

Defendant Mayor Bing's comments to the City's lobbyist were upsetting to Plaintiff 

because she had an excellent working relationship with the City's lobbyist and Defendant 

Mayor Bing's comments indicated Plaintiff was the one who had to be removed because 

of the difficulties with Defendant Dumas. 

b. On numerous occasions, Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas 

excluded Plaintiff from meetings with Defendant Mayor Bing, Executive Staff and/or the 

City's lobbyist to discuss the upcoming state budget hearings and/or strategy for proposed 

legislative amendments; yet, Defendant Dumas instructed Plaintiff to prepare a budget 

strategy for the upcoming state budget hearings and prioritize proposed legislative 

amendments for the City of Detroit. Plaintiff informed Defendant Dumas the request 

would be difficult due to the fact that Plaintiff had been excluded from all meetings and 

strategy sessions with the Governor, the State Treasurer, City Council, and the City's 

lobbyist. Defendant Dumas dismissed Plaintiffs concerns and said attendance at the 

meetings was not necessary to perform the tasks assigned to her, clearly exhibiting 

Defendant Dumas' lack of understanding of governmental affairs and public policy. 

18 



c. Defendant Dumas requested that Plaintiff meet with the Executive Staff to 

develop a state and federal strategy for the upcoming congressional session; but then 

informed Plaintiff that she, Defendant Dumas, not the Executive Staff would decide how 

to proceed because Defendant Dumas felt the Executive Staff was "too stupid to make 

any decisions." This placed Plaintiff in the position of meeting with Executive Staff 

under the false pretense of receiving their input on important state and federal legislative 

strategy, knowing full well that Defendant Dumas, a person who was not qualified, 

experienced or knowledgeable about legislative affairs, would be making the final 

decision. This scenario undermined Plaintiffs credibility with the Executive Staff. 

d. When the Detroit Zoological Society called Plaintiff to request that the 

First Lady be nominated to their board, Plaintiff relayed the information to Defendant 

Dumas who stated that she, Defendant Dumas, would sit on the board and not the First 

Lady. When Plaintiff asked if Defendant Mayor Bing should make the decision as to 

who would sit on the board, Defendant Dumas told Plaintiff, "no" because Defendant 

Mayor Bing and the First Lady's relationship was "strange" requiring Defendant Dumas 

to make those types of decisions. This placed Plaintiff in the awkward position of having 

to advise the Zoological Board that their request to have the First Lady on their board 

would be denied. Defendant Dumas made other inappropriate comments of a personal 

nature regarding the status of Defendant Mayor Bing and the First Lady's marriage. 

e. Defendant Dumas asked Plaintiff about the status of a letter appointing the 

City's nominee to the Detroit-Wayne Port Authority Board. Plaintiff advised Defendant 

Dumas that the letter appointing a specific individual, pursuant to the Mayor's request, 

was on his desk awaiting signature. Defendant Dumas disagreed with the appointment of 
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the specific individual and went to speak with Defendant Mayor Bing. Defendant Dumas 

then returned to Plaintiffs office and said she was a liar, and that Defendant Mayor Bing 

stated he had never asked Plaintiff to prepare a letter nominating that individual. Plaintiff 

responded that she would not have prepared the letter on her own without the Mayor's 

directive, at which point Defendant Dumas made a derogatory comment about Defendant 

Mayor Bing's ability to remember what he says. In a subsequent meeting between 

Defendant Mayor Bing, Defendant Dumas, and Plaintiff, Plaintiff asked Defendant 

Mayor Bing whether he instructed Plaintiff to write a letter nominating the specific 

person to the Detroit-Wayne Port Authority Board, and Defendant Mayor Bing stated he, 

indeed, so instructed Plaintiff. Defendant Dumas became enraged about the appointee 

and called the person an "asshole," stated she would not allow that person to be 

appointed, and demanded that her choice be the nominee-a person with whom she had a 

longstanding political relationship. Defendant Mayor Bing did not comment and did not 

correct Defendant Dumas' behavior in blocking his choice of a nominee to the Detroit­

Wayne Port Authority Board. 

41. Plaintiff has a preexisting health condition that is exacerbated by stress. During 

Plaintiffs tenure in the Mayor's Office, the emotional and physical stress of all of the above 

actions by Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas caused Plaintiff to have increased 

monitoring of her condition, including heart monitoring, and to be hospitalized on four 

occasions. Plaintiffs physician placed her on medical leave on May 16,2011. 

43. On May 20, 2011, while Plaintiff was on medical leave, a member of the Mayor's 

Executive Protection Unit hand delivered to Plaintiffs residence a letter dated May 18, 2011, 
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informing her that at the close of business on May 20, 2011, her appointment as Executive 

Assistant to the Mayor 11 ended. 

44. Upon information and belief, Defendant Dumas then instructed employees in the 

Information Technology Department to delete all e-mails on Plaintiffs computer. 

COUNT I 

VIOLATION OF WHISTLEBLOWERS' PROTECTION ACT 

PlaintitTs hereby restate, reallege and incorporate by reference, each and every paragraph 

above, as though fully set forth herein, and further state the following: 

45. Pursuant to the Whistleblowers' Protection Act, MCl 15.361 et. seq., an 

employer may not discharge or otherwise discriminate against an individual who reports or is 

about to report a violation or suspected violation a law or regulation or rule promulgated 

pursuant to a political subdivision of the State of Michigan. 

46. Plaintiff reported to the Chief of Staff on April 6, 2011, the person who Defendant 

Mayor Bing specifically told Plaintiff to notify regarding Defendant Dumas' behavior, that 

Defendant Dumas violated Executive Order No. 2010-1, entitled "Violence in the Workplace," 

and created a hostile work environment when Defendant Dumas continued to falsely accuse 

Plaintiff of failing to respond to emails or follow Defendant Dumas' directives when Plaintiff 

did, in fact, do so and had proof of her actions; and after the 3:00 p.m. meeting on or about 

March 31, 2011, Defendant Dumas came into Plaintiffs office, shut the door, shouted at 

Plaintiff, cursed that she did not want the Chief of Staff to mediate the hostile work environment 

Defendant Dumas created, refused to leave Plaintiffs office despite repeated requests to do so, 

refused to allow Plaintiff to leave her own office to escape from Defendant Dumas' tirade, and 

caused Plaintiff to become visibly and emotionally distraught, as more fully set forth above. 
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47. After Plaintiff blew the whistle on Defendant Dumas, Defendant Mayor Bing and 

Defendant Dumas, acting as agents of the Defendant City of Detroit, retaliated against Plaintiff 

when: 

a. Defendant Dumas caused a scene at the mandatory staff meeting regarding 

workplace violence that the Chief of Staff called to educate the Mayor's staff in 

Defendant Mayor Bing's presence; and when Defendant Dumas walked out of the 

meeting in disgust, Defendant Mayor Bing took no corrective action against her, sending 

the message to his staff that Defendant Dumas' actions were to be tolerated; 

b. Defendant Dumas confronted Plaintiff after the workplace violence 

meeting and stated in a hostile voice that ''It's because of you we had this [workplace 

violence] meeting; 

c. Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas excluded Plaintiff from 

important meetings regarding governmental affairs and public policy and then required 

Plaintiff to perform tasks that would have required Plaintiffto be a part of the meetings in 

order to perform her duties in a competent and professional manner; 

d. Defendant Dumas ordered Plaintiff to negotiate the terms of an illegal 

contract on behalf of a second lobbying firm with whom Defendant Dumas had a political 

relationship and to which she wanted to steer work; 

e. Defendant Dumas told Plaintiff to interfere in the appointment of the First 

Lady to the Detroit Zoological Board; 

f. Defendant Dumas called Plaintiff a liar about a directive from Defendant 

Mayor Bing regarding his appointment to the Detroit-Wayne Port Authority; 
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g. Defendant Mayor Bing told a principal of the City's state lobbying finn 

that Plaintiff and Defendant Dumas were not getting along and there would be changes to 

his staff and Plaintiff would have some other role in the Administration. Defendant 

Mayor Bing's comments indicated PlaintilT was the one who had to be removed from 

government affairs because of the difficulties with Defendant Dumas; and 

h. Defendant Mayor Bing ternlinated Plaintiffs employment as Executive 

Assistant to the Mayor II on May 18, 20) 1, and otherwise discriminated against Plaintiff 

as a result of her protected activity; and 

I. Other acts to be determined during the course of discovery. 

48. All of the above actions were in violation of the Whistleblowers' Protection Act, 

MCL 15.361 et. seq. 

49. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' violation of the Whistleblowers' 

Protection Act, MCL 15.361 et. seq., Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer damages 

which include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a. Loss of wages and earnings, present and future; 

b. Loss of benefits, present and future; 

c. Mental anguish and emotional distress; 

d. Humiliation, outrage and embarrassment; 

e. Physical pain, suffering, illness and exacerbation of a pre-existing health 
condition; 

f. Damage to reputation; 

g. Actual attorney fees and costs as provided by MCL ] 5.363(3); 

h. Other damages as detennined by the trier of fact. 
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, ROCHELLE D. COLLINS, respectfully requests that 

judgment be rendered against the above-named Defendants in whatever amount above Twenty­

Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) which the trier of fact deems appropriate, together with 

interest, costs and attorney fees. 

COUNT II 

BREACH OF CONTRACT 

Plaintiffs hereby reallege and incorporate by reference, each and every paragraph above, 

as though fully set forth herein, and further state, in the alternative, the following: 

50. Executive Order No. 20 I 0-1 prohibiting violence in the workplace or retaliation 

for making a report of violence in the workplace created a promise of a legitimate expectation of 

job security and an express and/or implied contract that Plaintiff would not be subjected to 

workplace violence and/or would not be terminated for making a report of workplace violence. 

Furthermore, Defendant Mayor Bing stated to Plaintiff that he wanted to retain her as part of his 

Administration and stated she performed her duties in a competent manner. 

51. Based upon the mandates of Executive Order No. 2010-1 and Defendant Mayor 

Bing's repeated statements and assurances that he "did not want to lose her" because she was a 

valuable member of his staff, and Defendant Mayor Bing's directive to Plaintiff to report 

Defendant Dumas' actions to the Chief of Staff if there were problems with Defendant Dumas' 

behavior; Plaintiff reported to the Chief of Staff that Defendant Dumas actions constituted 

workplace violence. 

52. Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas, acting as agents of the City of 

Detroit, breached Plaintiffs express and/or implied contract of employment that under the terms 

and conditions of her employment Plaintiff would not be subjected to workplace violence and/or 
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would not be tenninated for making a report of workplace violence in the following ways: 

a. After Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas relieved the Group 

Executive for Corporate and Civic Affairs of his duties, and because 

Plaintiff had intimate knowledge of the true facts and circumstances 

regarding the reason for the Group Executive's departure, they assigned 

Plaintiffs direct reporting relationship to Defendant Dumas. Defendant 

Dumas proceeded to "micro-manage" Plaintiffs work responsibilities to a 

level that was harassing. Defendant Dumas also ordered Plaintiff to move 

to a smaller office under the pretense that Defendant Dumas needed 

PlaintifT to be closer to her; 

b. Defendant Dumas continued to falsely accuse Plaintiff of failing to 

respond to emails or follow Defendant Dumas' directives when Plaintiff 

did, in fact, do so and had proof of her actions; 

c. After the 3:00 p.m. meeting on or about March 31, 2011, Defendant 

Dumas came into Plaintiffs office, shut the door, shouted at Plaintiff, 

cursed that she did not want the Chief of Staff to mediate the hostile work 

environment Defendant Dumas created, refused to leave Plaintiffs office 

despite repeated requests to do so, refused to allow Plaintiff to leave her 

own office to escape from Defendant Dumas' tirade, and caused Plaintiff 

to become visibly and emotionally distraught, as more fully set forth 

above. 

d. Defendant Dumas caused a scene at the mandatory staff meeting regarding 

workplace violence that the Chief of Staff called to educate the Mayor's 
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staff in Defendant Mayor Bing's presence; and when Defendant Dumas 

walked out of the meeting in disgust, Defendant Mayor Bing took no 

corrective action against her, sending the message to his staff that 

Defendant Dumas' actions were to be tolerated; 

e. Defendant Dumas confronted Plaintiff after the workplace violence 

meeting and stated in a hostile voice that ''It's because of you we had this 

[workplace violence] meeting; 

f. Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas excluded Plaintiff from 

important meetings regarding governmental affairs and public policy and 

then required Plaintiff to perform tasks that would have required Plaintiff 

to be a part of the meetings in order to perform her duties in a competent 

and professional manner; 

g. Defendant Dumas ordered Plaintiff to negotiate the terms of an illegal 

contract on behalf of a second lobbying firm with whom Defendant 

Dumas had a political relationship and to which she wanted to steer work; 

h. Defendant Dumas told Plaintiff to interfere in the appointment of the First 

Lady to the Detroit Zoological Board; 

1. Defendant Dumas called Plaintiff a liar about a directive from Defendant 

Mayor Bing regarding his appointment to the Detroit-Wayne Port 

Authority; 

J. Defendant Mayor Bing told a principal of the City's state lobbying firm 

that Plaintiff and Defendant Dumas were not getting along and there 

would be changes to his staff and Plaintiff would have some other role in 
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the Administration. Defendant Mayor Bing's comments indicated 

Plaintiff was the one who had to be removed from government affairs 

because of the difficulties with Defendant Dumas; and 

k. Defendant Mayor Bing terminated Plaintiffs employment as Executive 

Assistant to the Mayor II on May 18, 2011 ; and 

I. Other acts to be determined during the course of discovery. 

53. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' breach of express and/or implied 

contract, Plaintiff has suffered the following damages, including, but not limited to: 

a. Loss of wages and earnings; 

b. Loss of benefits; 

c. Mental anguish and emotional distress; 

d. Physical pain, suffering, illness and exacerbation of a pre-existing health 
condition; 

e. Humiliation, outrage and embarrassment; 

f. Damage to her reputation; 

g. Other damages as determined by the trier of fact 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, ROCHELLE D. COLLINS, respectfully requests that judgment 

be rendered against the above-named Defendants in whatever amount above Twenty-five 

Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) which the trier of fact deems appropriate, together with interest, 

costs and attorney fees. 

COUNT III 

INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

Plaintiffs hereby reallege and incorporate by reference, each and every paragraph above, 

as though fully set forth herein, and further state, in the alternative, the following: 
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54. Defendant Mayor Bing and Defendant Dumas' above actions constituted extreme 

and outrageous conduct, with the intent to cause Plaintiff severe emotional distress and/or were 

so reckless as to cause Plaintiff severe emotional distress. 

55. As a direct and proximate result of the actions of Defendants, the hostile work 

environment they created, and acts of retaliation against Plaintiff, Plaintiff has suffered the 

following damages, including, but not limited to: 

a. Mental anguish and emotional distress; 

b. Physical pain, suffering, illness and exacerbation of a pre-existing health 
condition; 

c. Humiliation, outrage and embarrassment; 

d. Other damages as determined by the trier of fact. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, ROCHELLE D. COLLINS, respectfully requests that judgment 

be rendered against the above-named Defendants in whatever amount above Twenty-five 

Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) which the trier of fact deems appropriate, together with interest, 

costs and attorney fees. 

COUNT IV 

LOSS OF CONSORTIUM 

The Plaintiffs hereby restate, reallege, and incorporate by reference each and every 

allegation set forth above, and further plead in the alternative, the following: 

56. Plaintiff Oreese Collins, at all times pertinent to this Complaint, was and is the 

lawfully wedded husband of the Plaintiff Rochelle D. Collins. 

57. As a direct and proximate result of the injuries and damages experienced by 

Rochelle D. Collins, Plaintiff Oreese Collins has suffered the loss of his wife's consortium, 
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society, and companionship and has suffered emotional distress and anxiety. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, OREESE COLLINS, JR. respectfully requests that judgment be 

rendered against the above-named Defendants in whatever amount above Twenty-five Thousand 

Dollars ($25,000.00) which the trier of fact deems appropriate, together with interest, costs and 

attorney fees. 

DATED: June 15,2011 

Respectfully submitted, 

MORGAN & MEYERS, PLC 

BY: 

ebra N. Pospiech 5 27 ) 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
3200 Greenfield, Suite 260 
Dearborn, MI 48120 
(313) 961-0130 
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

NOW COME the above-captioned Plaintiffs, ROCHELLE D. COLLINS and 

OREESE COLLINS, JR., by and through their attorneys, MORGAN & MEYERS, PLC, and 

hereby demands a trial by jury in the above-entitled cause of action. 

DATED: June 15,2011 

MORGAN & MEYERS, PLC 

BY: 

ebra N. Pospiech (P552 7) 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
3200 Greenfield, Suite 260 
Dearborn, MI 48120 
(313) 961-0130 

30 



March 26, 2011 

Mayor Dave Bing: 

J am writing this letter out of,~nc.ern for the events th~11,Jl~y.~R~rsonally' observed 
in your office. I respect you ahd can only hope that you [o·.not approve of the 
activity that goes on In your office. Please underslartd that this letter is not intended 
to be disrespectful or to attack anyone's character. It is only to put you on notice 
that you have a real issue In your office and it is just a matter of time before it 
explodes and someone gets hurt physically and politically. 

I have only worked in your office for a few months and the. things that J have 
observed are terrible. I have personally watched Karen Dl,imas personally and 
professional1y destroy people in your offi~e. Anynne whodlSa~es with her or 
stands up for what is right and truthful is immediately os~ciz~d,.scrutinized, 
critidzed, and ultimately terminated. Ms. DumaS has no n(66fiaHor the employee 
ttmninations. Everyone who she has been Instrumental i,'fJetffiinatfng Was people 
who have not been afraid to confront her malicious behaV1~t; 

Pr.lor to coming (0 your office, I questioned the facttha~M,~l>,uf!1a~ was6n-yo~r 
s~ff. She has a reputation in the community for beiiigdis1t~~t~taJ1dme'an;;~pli1ted. 
y~~, she win buy people liij;l.~ gl~ and get them spm~mjir~ " :. ·i:b~ll":b'lfJ'h~iS.y;.al\tI 
t»en·stabtbem In the baek-andtear them down allin ohe-~'" If.e~pi~~ih.~1l1tiflaJof 
Helng an {numate part orth~ ~I~i>atrick team, she WclSjC, ···'riiia;~e~ll~ll. 
UftttutbhlJnt!ss, anddetelH}\lU'w:e-htalbff withlllibiMftl . nmfrB'ftrlllre 
was. aquestibnable contrac'tthat she ente~ed Iritowtth;fIl' c·'h·'iiSlI2~liliBtins 
wotkon oehalf of Kilpatrick. tins is the reas.on shetitltf:i:!mM'~H. 
Lb"er6rtermin~tion. Ms.Sttidd~hd·Love knew.iBblltC ila~wHi1tlH~ 
heEame M t. Cockrell's Chief BfStalf;she immedlat~lyt\a_t~lftjfim 
~f.:C1iUse it was disnonesta~dwaiagarhst City pOn~~rq: ,,;~,:.,.}IJ~~~<· 
office, Ms. Oumas lrntnedliitely targeted Ms. Love beaus ,;,.~. D,\HUil\t~~·'j.fI~:,LOve 
would expose her. Unrortuna~iy, she did not know that".~ifbdve·;I~nDHhaftlhd of 
person. Unfortunate~y Mayor~'ing,it.appears that you dla~btsee'thr,oughM~. 
Dumas' tactics and YOU termJnated Ms. Love. ;' 

I am concerned about a number of things that I have perS6~iiy obserVeda~Ut Ms. 
Dum~5. She. gpes througho)Jt y()~r offlceand Sh,!~t,~Jn.~tiP~~.~~.~,·.Sh'~m.U~."s 
everyone else's work, ai:tacksilieir character,liesaBDiitJIlIri.f.fiiftivitY~ari~'tf.trnat\ds 
~hat the communications t~amstay away from.ce~in:peO - n,th,e,o.ffi,~.e.;:H!~, 
H~havlor Is absurd in tltatihe dOes not possesst.hel1ilUl nt1~stS;p!Ji'afrnthe 
jobs or these people, yet she tHtfdzes their worlt! I d6 kn6WJHlt MSi Hf)tMlj~weht 
to Ms. DUmas to tty and talk to her about her be}\avloflif·td~mceilnow:mrtbiTy 
for Ms; Holmes because Ms. Dumas has gone arouhdtheo'fflteand:'attacked;her 
character, criticized her work. talked about her to subb~(linates, and even criticizes 
her religious beliefs. J have watched how Ms. Dumas lied,tt) Karla Hehdersonabout 
Ms. Holmes' character and now Ms. Henderson talks abo~fMs. Holmes, is meafHo 



her, and publicly criticizes her work. Again, Ms. Henderson dOes not have the skills 
or abilities to assess Ms. HoJmes' work. but she does so in an attempt to tear Ms. 
Holmes down. I have personally witnessed this behavior. Ms. Holmes continues to 
be professional and has not responded to Ms. Dumas and Ms. Henderson's ignorant 
and inappropriate behavior. 

Mayor, did you know that Ms. Dumas asked a member of her staff to find some dirt 
on Ms. Holmes because "she has got to go?" This directive was given immediately 
following the FOlA request for your calendar. Ms. Dumas was. adamant about not 
produdng your calendar. When Ms. Dumas could not find any "dirt- on Ms. Holmes, 
Ms. Dumas immediately ramped up the attack on Ms. Holmes' character and her 
ability to do the job. M1 Dumas even stated that she told Ms. Holmes to say that 
your calendar had been destroyed during the crash of our computers, when in fact 
your calendar had NOT been destroyed. According to Ms. Dumas, "She (Ms. Holmes) 
is so dumb. All she had to do was say the calendar was destroyed during the 
computer crash: Ms. Holmes' refusal to lie about your calendar has caused things 
to escalate in the office. Ms. Holmes (s treated terribly by Ms. Dumas and Ms. 
Henderson (who is a follower). These two women talk about Ms. Holmes, critidze 
her, and have engaged Inacampafgn to destroy Ms. Holmes. Ms. Holmes either has 
no clue-ofwhatthesewomen are dOing, or she has chosen to ignore the behavior. 

Mayor. I'm conc~m_~d.ab!!!!t\.!hyyou are not been appalled br- your 
"comm'tln1cations~chle':tegu~tJng.or even inferring that som'.;'One engage in 
dishonesty aboutyourc~i~naar. Were you present during thE conversation where 
Ms~biirnas said thirMs. Rotmes should say that your calendar was destroyed when 
in fact ltwas n~t? Jfypuwefe, you should have been outraged enough to 
Immediately reUeveMs.t)ufi\as of her duties. I can only hope that you were not 
prWyt6lhis convefS:Uit)il.1WUltell you that when Ms. Dumas regurgitated this 
cOnversation, 'tS'ounaed-asif~gu were there and did NOTHING. If Ms. Dumas will 
lie about a caleftd~t,~hatel$t.nas she lied about and what else w/ll she lie about? 
Mayor, I'rn coneerned:ilbbutyour integrity andthnsparency. I believe that Ms. 
Dumas didnotwilht-thecalendardisdosed because someone would question the 
number of trips thatshe nas taken with you on non-City business, and at the City's 
e~ense (i.e., New Yotk-where her daughter attends school). 

Ms. Dumas and Ms. Henderson have also engaged in a campaign to destroy Deputy 
Mayor Saul Green~ Th~y~t~ apout him to subordinates. They criticize his 
mannerisms andsay.-thathe doesn't do anything. Again, neither of these women is 
smart enough to assess Mr. Gr~en's work, but they do it in an attempt to destroy 
him. Ms. ljurna$ihci'Rs. Henderson engages in this behavior in the office as well as 
In the pUblic. Ms~ DUinas has gone as far as to say that you are going to get rid of Mr. 
Green arid elevate Chief RaJ ph Godbee, who happens to be Ms. Dumas' persona) 
friend. Unfortunately, Mr. Green has no clue orhow Ms. Dumas and Ms. Henderson 
have set out to ruin him. Mayor, do you see a pattern of behavior? Of course, Ms. 



Dumas likes Chief Godbee because his character Is similar to hers. Unfortunate for 
Mr. Green, he too has stood up to Ms. Dumas about her Inappropriate behavior and 
her devisiveness and now he Is a target as weU. Mayor, YOU have allowed this to 
happen. Mr. Green is of the utmost integrity. He has had a successful career as an 
attorney and even as the U.s. Attorney.ijt,>..)! £il~YoU allow Ms. Dumas to spew 
venom about a man who just wants to do what's right. fair, and who wantS everyone 
[0 be treated with respect? 

Ms. Dumas has also engaged In a·successful campatgn to alienate and destroy Norm 
White. From day one, she has been out in the community and In the office criticizing 
Mr. White and attacking his character. She, aJongwith the lijanas (Tom and Dan), 
has tried to tear Mr. White apart in hopes that sClmeday Tom Lijana would become 
the CFO. Mr. White stood up to Ms. Dumas and confronted her about the attacks 
against his skills and his character: Unfortunate for Mr. White, he has now been 
ostracized and alienated from the team. It appeurs that YOU have allowed Ms. 
Dumas' comments and behavior to intluence your decision about Mr. White. 

Mayor, do you even see how YOU have allowed Ms. Dumas to totaIJy destroy what 
could very well have been a grear team? She has picked apart everyone who has 
been brave enough to stand up for what lsrtght;; fair, and truthful. Mayor, this kind 
of behavior is unacceptable and J feel Hkeat\~Pncrite by sitting around and 
watching Ms. Dumas and Ms. HenderS6W$~J.)~b~.v.Jbr and wii~hing you as YOU allow 
this type of behavior to run rampant-fny()~ .. jjfflce. I have t-'Ospeak out. You took 
this office under the prerhisethatyouwC5~M be truthful, transparent and 
demonstrate the uUllostlntegntY. r'llave\vatthea you as YOU have aligned yourself 
with Ms. Dumas and allowed her to ~aifhavOc in your office. The community is 
questioning your integrity. People_ are even w~ilderlng if you have engaged in some 
type ofintimate relations~ip With Ms.Durnas tind how she has you captive. You are 
allOwing these things to take place and you have chosen to remain silent 

People in the office are afraid to even speak out because they are afraid that you will 
terminate them If they complain· about Ms. Dumas (te'iErica HIJI, Barbara Patton, 
Terra DeFoe, Stephanie Young, etc.). Mayor, you can't just sit back and pretend that 
these things are not happeni~g. J'myouhg in my career and J noticed this dJaboJical 
behavior after being In the office for only 2~3 wl~ks. At this point, no one will even 
~ honest with you about Ms. Dumas' behavior because they are afraid that they will 
be terminated or treated nasty, unfairly and poorly like Ms. Holmes. 

Ms. Dumas has recently launched a campaign to get rid of }(am au Marable and 
Rochene CoJllns. Mr. Marable Is Jeavtngbeeat.tsl! he knows thafMs. bumas does not 
like him and that she wiJ) ultimately terminate him. Mr. Marable has witnessed how 
Ms. Dumas has treated other people ahd Ms. Dumas knows that he does not approve 
of her inappropriate behavior. Ms. Collins, who has partldpated in Ms. Dumas' 
bashing of other employees, is now the subject of Ms. Dumas' affection. It is just a 
matter of time before Ms. Dumas terrninates her. 



Mayor, your office is a hostile work environmenL People aTe walking on pins and 
needles despite Ms. Dumas' behavior because they are afraid that you will terminate 
them at Ms. Dumas' request I'm afraid that Ms. Dumas and Ms. Henderson are going 
to provoke someone to respond jn a violent manner. This is how bad the 
environment is on the 11 th floor, If yOll. don't step in and adPr~ss this $ituation, you 
are at fault and YOU should be held accountable. You have to stand up, Mayor. and 
stop this woman from destroying your team and your good reputation. You have to 
do what is right because the people of Detroit are counting on "you to not just do 
right in the public, but to do right even on the 11 th floor. 

I'm not writing this letter to embarrass you. I'm writing this letter because J fear 
that someone is going to explode and it won't be pretty. Ms. Dumas is a treacherous 
woman. She is unhappy with her life and will stop at nothing to destroy people who 
are happy, truthful. and willing to stand against wnat (s wrong, Mayor, you have to 
stop this behavior - TODAY. 1 hope that you will have the character and the courage 
to stand for what is right and not allow other people to influence and destroy the 
reputation that you have built for yourself and your family. 

If you truly care about this City, you MUST do what Is right You cannot allow others 
to mistreat people while you stand by and pretend that it's not-happening or that 
you didn't see it I know that my days are numbered In YOUr office because J too 
have spoken out against Ms. Dumas' Inappropriate. unprofessttmaJ, and dishonest 
behavior. Before J leave, I just want you to know that there is a serious problem in 
your office and my absence won't make it go away. You have to confront this issue. 

Instead of Ms. Dumas trying to assess areas that she has no expertise in, I ask that 
she assess the success of the communications team. Your message is 'not in the 
community among the voters. You have no connection with the church leaders. The 
community does not even know what you have done over the, past year in office. 
The only message out there is that you are Wlllltag ro hoia a number of meaningless 
meetings about land use and that you have a revolving door of empJoyees in your 
office. You cannot get your message into the community wheayou have a" 
communications chief that does not like people, attacks othei~Land leads a 
campaign to destroy the reputation and characte!' of good peiJ'pie. 

Mayor. it's not too Jate to turn this thing around. You can dolt. but you must treat 
the cancer that has invaded your team. Ignoring cancer woni.t make it go away, J 
hope that you will make the right decision. I wish you well in your endeavors. 



CITY OF DETROIT 

MAYOR'S OFFICE 

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2010-1 

COLEMAN A. YOUNG MUNICIPAL CENTER 

2 WOODWARD AVE., SUITE 1126 
DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226 
PHONE: 313-224-3400 
FAX: 313-124-4128 
WWW.DETROITMI.GOV 

TO: ALL DEP ARTMENT DIRECTORS, AGENCY HEADS, BOARDS, 
COMMISSIONS, MAYOR'S OFFICE, CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS, AND 
THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE 

DATE: NOVEMBER 15,2010 

The City of Detroit has a long-standing commitment to promoting a safe and secure work 
environment for the benefit of its employees and the general public. The City of Deh'oit is 
committed to preventing violence against persons receiving City services and participating in City 
programs. 

Employees have the right to work in an environment that is free from violence. As an 
employer, the City of Detroit will take all affinnative steps necessary to eliminate violence in the 
City workplace. 

Violence in the workplace includes: 1) written or verbal communications, whether direct or 
indirect, which are of a threatening, intinudating, or coercive nature; 2) the use or threat of physical 
force, including fighting or horseplay; 3) stalking; 4) vandalism or destruction of property; and 5) 
the use or possession of any weapon or ammunition, unless the specific weapon or ammunition is 
authorized by the City for a particular work assignment. Appropriate disciplinary action, up to and 
including discharge, will be taken against employees who are found to have engaged in such 
misconduct. 

The City of Detroit will not tolerate violence in the workplace, whether conunitted by or 
against City employees. In accordance with this Order: 

1) The City of Detroit shall continue to adhere to a policy of zero tolerance for any fOIm 
of violence in the workplace; 

2) The Director of the Human Rights Department shall promulgate and oversee the 
implementation ofa Violence in the Workplace Policy. Tlus Policy shall provide for 
designation of a City of Detroit Violence in the Workplace Coordinator witlun the 
Human Rights Department, appoinhnent of a departmental Violence' in the 

DAVE BING, MAYOR 



Executive Order No. 2010-1 
November 15, 2010 
Page 2 

Workplace Liaison in each City dep31tment and agency, reporting and investigation 
procedures for incidents of workplace violence, appropriate assistance to victims of 
workplace violence, and training of City of Detroit managers, supervisors, and 
employees on the Violence in the Workplace Policy; 

3) The Human Rjghts Department shall establish a Workplace Violence Hotline and 
issue Workplace Violence Guidelines on Prevention and Management ofViolel1ce; 

4) The DiJ:ector of the Human Rjghts Department shall promulgate amendments to the 
Violence in the Workplace Policy as may be necessary and proper to effectuate this 
Executive Order; 

5) All managers and supervisors shall be responsible for implelnenting and maintaining 
safe workplace practices, the City of Detroit Violence in the Workplace Policy, and 
communicating the Policy to subordinates; 

6) All Department Directors and Agency Heads shall continually review cun-ent security 
measures at work sites and, where needed, shall implement changes to make work 
sites safer for City of Detroit employees and the public; 

7) All employees, including managers and supervisors, shall be responsible forreporting 
incidents of violence in the workplace or any potentially dangerous situation to their 
supervisors, the Violence in the Workplace Liaison in each department and agency, 
the Human Rights Department Workplace Violence Unit, or, where appropriate, to 
law enforcement authorities; 

8) Violence in the Workplace Liaisons shall be responsible for implementation of the 
Violence in the Workplace Policy in their individual departments and agencies in 
coordination with the City of Detroit Violence in the Workplace Coordinator; 

9) No person shall be retaliated against for having made a good faith report or camp laint 
or for participating in, or aiding an investigation of, an incident or threat of violence 
in the workplace; and 

10) This Order and the Violence in the Workplace Policy does not cover allegations of 
violence committed by or against sworn police officers in the course of their official 
duties, which are to be refelTed to the Office of the Chief Investigator for the Board 
of Po lice Commissioners, or, as appropliate, law enforcement authorities. 
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Pursuant to the powers vested in me by the 1963 Michigan Constitution and by the 1997 
Detroit City Charter, I, Dave Bing, Mayor of the City of Detroit, issue this Executive Order. This 
Executive Order is effective this date and supercedes Executive Order No. 12 issued by Mayor 
Dennis W. Archer on May 14, 1999 and reissued by Mayor Kwame M. Kilpatrick on May 27,2003. 

~i?' 
Dave Bing ~ 
Mayor 


